North Yorkshire Council

Care and Independence Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 5 December 2024 commencing at 10.00 am.

Councillor Karin Sedgwick in the Chair. plus Councillors Eric Broadbent, Karl Arthur, Andy Brown, Caroline Dickinson, Robert Heseltine, Nigel Knapton, Peter Lacey, Heather Moorhouse, Andy Paraskos, Jack Proud, Tony Randerson and Robert Windass.

Officers present: Richard Webb, Louise Wallace, Kate Allanson, Natalie Smith, Johnny Prince, Angela Hall and Melanie Carr.

Other Attendees: Adrian Green, Chair of North Yorkshire Safeguarding Adults Board.

Apologies: Councillors Joy Andrews, Monika Slater and Roberta Swiers.

Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book

19 Apologies for Absence

Councillor Roberta Swiers gave her apologies and Councillor Alyson Baker attended as her substitute.

Apologies were also received from Councillors Joy Andrews and Monika Slater.

20 Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 September 2024

Resolved – That the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2024 be taken as read and confirmed by the Chair as a correct record.

21 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

22 Public Participation

No public questions or statements were received.

23 North Yorkshire Safeguarding Adults Board - Annual Report 2023-24

Considered – The annual report of the North Yorkshire Safeguarding Adults Board (NYSAB) for 2023-2024.

Members welcomed Adrian Green, new Chair of the NYSAB to the meeting and recorded their thanks to the previous Chair, Sue Proctor.

Adrian Green went on to introduce the annual report and provide a detailed overview of the Board's purpose, the work undertaken and its delivery outcomes for the past year. This included:

- The data collected throughout 2023-24 in order to review safeguarding practice and standards.
- The specific audits undertaken to examine best practice and seek reassurance.
- The Board's partners and use of local safeguarding partnerships.
- The three spotlight campaigns undertaken National Probation Service; Right Care Right Person; REACH Housing Project.
- The statistics detailed in the report.
- The events and activity undertaken during Safeguarding Week 2023.

Members also noted the independent safeguarding adults' reviews undertaken during the last year and the learning opportunities they identified. They were pleased to note the progress made in implementing the recommendations arising from previous reviews, as detailed in the report.

Specifically in regard to rough sleepers, it was noted that a recent national count suggested that 85% had care and support needs. Members recognised the need to improve rough sleepers' ability to access services through a more assertive outreach approach and targeted initiatives.

Member discussed whether a cultural shift away from having limited time to undertake a visit/assessment would be beneficial in the long run. They also acknowledged the time required to build trust and the need to keep people well informed.

In regard to data held on ethnic minorities, Members recognised it could be used to reach out to key individuals in rural communities to help identified pockets of unidentified need.

The Chair thanked Adrian Green for his attendance at the meeting, and it was

Resolved – That the NYSAB Annual Report be noted.

24 Public Health Annual Report 2023-24

Considered – A report by Louise Wallace, Director of Public Health (DPH) introducing the DPH Annual Report 2023-24, with a focus on older people and four healthy ageing priorities for North Yorkshire, as detailed in section 3 of the report.

Louise Wallace introduced Dr Victoria Turner – Lead Consultant and Carly Walker – Public Health Manager. She went on to provide an overview of her independent annual report which every DPH had a statutory requirement to publish on the health of their population, as a vehicle for informing local people about the health of their community and informing decision-makers in local health services and authorities on health gaps and priorities that needed addressing.

Louise Wallace drew specific attention to the feedback on the implementation of last year's recommendations and the new recommendations within her Annual report.

Members commended officers on the report and endorsed the new recommendations, and discussed where geographically they were likely to be targeted. They also noted:

- The identified health inequalities and pockets of deprivation
- The ongoing work to make North Yorkshire an age friendly place.
- · Rural and coastal areas were aging faster.
- The need for greater 'Dying Matters' awareness.
- · Women were living longer.

The Chair thanked the Director for Public Health for her Annual Report and it was

Resolved: That the report be noted.

25 Health & Adult Services Annual Account 2023-24

Considered – A report of the Corporate Director of Health & Adult Services (HAS) presenting the Local Account 2023/24.

Richard Webb, Corporate Director of Health & Adult Services confirmed the Local Account was an annual statement of HAS performance in delivering adult social care, detailing progress against the Directorate's improvement priorities for 2023-24.

Specific attention was drawn to the examples of involvement work within the report, the challenges identified with the report and a number of achievements over the 2023-24 year.

In response to Members' questions Richard Webb confirmed:

- In regard to what the Public Health Grant could be spent on, some areas were mandated, and the rest was discretionary.
- There had been some radical changes to ensure a more even spread of expenditure on mental health.
- The additional funding allocated to council's with identified deprived areas was not ringfenced.
- Whilst international recruitment in the private sector had increased, the Council was trying to grow its own workforce through apprenticeships and other employment initiatives.

Members went on to discuss their concerns around trafficking and exploitation, and acknowledged the increasing challenges they faced, in part due to change in cultural interactions online etc

Resolved – That the Annual Account for 2023-24 be noted.

26 Substance Use Presentation

Considered – A Director for Public Health presentation on substance use delivered by Angela Hall, Public Health Manager.

Louise Wallace, the Director for Public Health introduced the presentation providing an overview of the strategic context both nationally and locally.

Angela Hall provided an overview of North Yorkshire's Substance Use Strategy and service provision, and North Yorkshire's 'Treatment Plan' and other key ongoing actions. She also drew specific attention to three commissioned services – NY Horizons, NY Connected Spaces and NYRise and provided examples of their engagement and communication campaigns.

Members noted the data provided within the presentation. In particular they were pleased to note that North Yorkshire were performing better than the national average in regard to adult wait times, with the majority being seen within 10 days. They also noted the majority were accessing services as a result of alcohol dependence.

In response to Members questions, Officers confirmed:

The nationally set timeframe between asking for help and receiving it was being met

99% of the time.

- There was a clear understanding of where to target specific interventions based on identified need.
- Due to the changing pattern of substance use, the solutions taken in previous decades were no longer suitable, hence the Council's new Strategy.

Finally, Members noted:

- People were dying of poor physical health as a result of long term drug taking.
- The 3rd and 4th generation drug use taking place in some communities where it had become normalised.
- NY Horizon's use of volunteers with lived experience.
- The ongoing county lines prevention work

The Chair thanked officers for their update, and it was

Resolved – That the presentation be noted.

27 Direct Payments Overview

Considered – A presentation on Direct Payments – a way to have control over your own care and support personal budget, delivered by Kate Allanson, Head of Targeted Prevention.

The presentation included key data on direct payments, together with a number of example case studies, and Members were pleased to note the steady increase in take up, and the key improvements detailed within the presentation.

The presentation also provided an update on ISF's, considered a middle option between direct payments and local authority managed services. Members noted the planned focussed pilots to be run to explore how they might support a greater move away from time and task services.

Finally the presentation provide an overview of the role of Personal Assistants, the support given to an individual to recruit and manage a PA, and the way their work was reviewed.

Members noted:

- There were no national targets set around the uptake of Direct Payments officers confirmed a 40% uptake for the county would be considered good.
- Direct Payments were reviewed 6 weeks after implementation and annually thereafter.
- Personal safety was a shared responsibility between the Local Authority, the employer, and the PA.
- Direct Payments were means tested.
- The county faced some cultural issues and there was some risk aversion in some parts of the county.

Resolved – That the presentation be noted.

28 Work Programme 2024/25

Resolved – That the item on preparation progress for ASC Assurance inspection be removed from the agenda for the March 2025 meeting, and instead be considered at the Committee's next mid cycle briefing.

29 Date of Next Meeting - 27 March 2025

The meeting concluded at 12.40 pm.